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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Converse
County Commissicners

Converse County, Wyoming

Douglas, Wyoming 82633

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Converse County, Wyoming as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the County's management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on my audit. | did not audit the financial statements of Converse County Weed and Pest
Control District, Memorial Hospital of Converse County, or the Converse County Airport Board, which
represent 98 percent, 97 percent and 98 percent of the assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate
discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports thereon have been furnished to me, and my opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
Converse County Weed and Pest Control District, Memorial Hospital of Converse County and Converse
County Airport Board, is based on the report of the other auditors.

| conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financiai
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my auditand
the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for my opinions.

In my opinion, based on my audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmentai activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Converse County, Wyoming, as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, | have also issued my report dated January 30, 2009 on
my consideration of the County's internai control over financial reporting and my tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part

of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Tracy Boner, CPA
should be considered in assessing the results of my audit. PO Box 15
315 Walnut Street

Douglas, WY 82633

Phone: 307-358-1818
Fax: 307-358-8449
tracy@cpaadvantage.us



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT - CONTINUED

The accompanying management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, and budgetary comparison
information on pages 39 through 40 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. | and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, [ did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplemental information is
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by US Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is aiso not a required part of the basic financial statements of Converse
County, Wyoming. The other supplemental information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
my opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Ak AW,L‘*/

CPA Advantage, LLC
Douglas, Wyoming
January 30, 2009
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Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2008

As management of Converse County (the County), we present to readers of the County’s basic financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
the County’s financial statements, notes to the financial statements and various supplementary information.
The discussion focuses on the County’s primary government and, unless otherwise noted, compeonent units
reported separately from the primary government are not included.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-Wide:

The restricted and unrestricted assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $30,508,074 (net assets). Of this amount, $13,467,872 may be used to meet the government's
ongoing General Fund and other nonmajor governmental funds obligations to citizens and creditors. The
County's total net assets, including all funds, increased by $2,147,871,

Fund Basis:
As of June 30, 2008, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $12,628,613.

As of June 30, 2008, the County’s other governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$536,569 of unreserved fund balance,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements.
The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements. This report alse contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the

County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicater of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardiess of the fiming of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods such as
revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes or expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation and sick leave.

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as grant revenue (governmental activities), from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities).



Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Government-Wide Financial Statements - Continued
Governmentai activities of the County include thoserelated to legislative and legal, general government, public
safety, public health, welfare and recreation, public works, conservation and direct assistance to otherentities,

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (the primary government), but
also other legally separate entities for which the County is financially accountable, Financial infermation for
these component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary

government itself,

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, ike other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demanstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable rescurces available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Bath the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental

activities.

The County maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is considered a major fund.

Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements,
located in the other supplementary information section of this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its funds. A budgetary comparison is provided for the
County's major governmental fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The budgetary comparison
statement for the major governmental fund, is located in the required supplementary information section of
this report,

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for operations that provide services to the general public
on a continuing basis or to internal County departments. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information contained in the business-type activities portion of the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The County maintains one type of proprietary fund, an internal service fund.

Internal Service funds are accounting mechanisms used to accumulate and allocate costs among the
County’s various functions. The Converse County uses an internal service fund to account for the operation
of the County's Employee Health Insurance function. Because these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they are incorporated into governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial
statements.



Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government and
consist of the Agency Fund. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the accompanying government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County's programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The fiduciary fund financial
statements can be found in the basic financial statements section of this report.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information and narrative disclosures that are
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County’'s budgetary compliance of the
general fund. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with governmental funds are
presented irmmediately following the required supplementary information.

Major funds and component units are reported in the basic financial statements as discussed.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of Net Assets
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In

the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $30,508,074 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Converse County, Wyoming
Net Assets
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2007 2008
Governmental Governmental
Aclivities Activities
Assets
Current and other assets $ 13,696,078 % 15,410,316
Capital assets 16,537,466 17,040,195
Total assets 30.233.544 32,450,511
Liabilities
Current liabilities 1,741,487 1,810,583
Long-term liabiiities 131,854 131,854
Total liabilities 1,873,341 1,942,437
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 16,537,466 17,040,195
Unrestricted 11,822,737 13,467,879
Total net assets $ 28360203 $§ 30,508,074



Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

Analysis of Net Assets - continued

A porticn of the County's net assets (56%) reflects its net investment of $17,040,195 in capital assets (for
example, land, buildings, vehicles, and eguipment), net of related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services {o citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets in all County funds of $13,467,879 may be used to meet the
government’'s ongeing obligations to citizens and creditors. Specific expenditure designations apply to the
special revenue funds.

At June 30, 2008, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, for the
government as a whole.

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets
The County's net assets increased $2,147,871 during the current fiscal year.

Converse County, Wyoming
Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2007 2008
Governmental Governmental
Activities Activities
Revenues
Charges for services ' $ 642,610 $ 664,138
Operating grants and contributions 1,765,699 1,713,266
Capital grants and contributions 457,824 305,706
Taxes
Property 4,126,045 4,472,363
Sales 2,852,192 3,369,854
Other 1,215,130 1,468,651
Unrestricted interest earnings 508,380 484,739
Other 210,212 61,023
Total revenues 11.778.102 12.539.740
Expenses
General government 2,661,304 2,955 487
Public safety 3,029,704 4,193,234
Public works 1,774,261 2,316,419
Health, welfare and recreation 838,495 829,160
Conservation 115,161 97.589
Total expenses ' 8.418.925 10,391,869
Change in net assets 3,359,177 2,147,871
Net assets - July 1, as adjusted 25,001,026 28,360,203
Net assets - June 30 $ 28360203 $ 30508074



Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

B Operating
& Capital grants grants & B Unrestricted
Charges for & contributions contributions investment
services 2% 14% earnings
4%

5%
Other tax
12%

TTITTeR
H‘{'”uun il

Sales taxes, property taxes, and other taxes are general revenues used to support overall government
functions; therefore, these are not shown as program revenues. Sales taxes make up 27%, other taxes,
consisting primarily of severance taxes and gas and fuel tax are at 12%, property taxes are 35%, unrestricted
interest income at 4%, charges for services 5%, operating grants and cenfributions are 14%, capital grants
and contributions are 2%. Key factors of this change in governmental activities include the following based

on the government-wide statement of activities:

E Property tax -

35% [ Sales tax

27%

1%

e Property taxes and other taxes increased by approximately $600,000 or 11%.
e Sales tax revenues increased by approximately $518,000 or 18%, due to a stable local economy.
® Charges for services increased approximately $22,000 or 3%.

e Grants and contributions decreased approximately $209,000 due to decrease in the Homeland
Security Grant and Community Development Block Grant.

e Governmental activities expenses increased due to higher wages and some capital expenses..

Governmental funds

The focus of the County’'s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

AtJune 30, 2008, the County's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $13,165,182,
an increase of $1,517,787. The increase is due fo increased tax revenues.

The General Fund is the County’s main operating fund. At June 30, 2008, fund balance of the General Fund
was $12,628,613, anincrease of $1,784,621 in comparison with the prior year. The increase in fund balance

was mainly due to higher tax revenues.



Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

Governmental funds - continued
The reserved fund balance classification indicates that it is committed for other purposes including $350,000

reserved for the depreciation reserve.

Internal Service Funds

The internal service fund, which is used to finance and account for goods and services provided internally
among County departments, had unrestricted net assets of $409,852. County management believes the cash
and investment position of the fund is sufficient to cover the current costs related to employee health insurance

and current operating costs.

Fiduciary Funds
The County maintains agency funds for taxes and other revenues collected for other governmental entities.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The County adopts an annual budget for all funds. The County Commissioners adopt budget adjustments
during the year for supplemental appropriations which are generally contingent upon new or additional
revenue sources or the spending of reserves.

General Fund
The General Fund reflects a net positive ending fund balance variance of $2,751,064, which consists of a

positive revenue variance of $2,066,228 and a positive expenditure variance of $684,8386.

General Fund actual revenues were above budgeted revenue due to an increase in anticipated sales and use
tax and motor vehicle taxes. Also, actual miscellaneous revenues were above budgeted revenue due to
receipt of Section 305 monies from the State of Wyoming.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities for the current fiscal year amounts

to $17,040,195 (net of accumulated depreciation).

This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings and related systems,
infrastructure, improvements, machinery and equipment, and park facilities.

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note F to the basic financial statements.

Long-Term Debt
At the end the current fiscal year, the County had long-term obligations outstanding of $131,854 which

represents accrued compensated absences. Additional information about Converse County's debt can be
found in Note E to the basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The County’s assessed valuation went from $505,726,571 in FY 08 t0 $583,725,972 in FY 09 —a netincrease
of $77,999,401.



Converse County, Wyoming
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES- CONTINUED

For the most pant, the various County departments’ budget requests were in line with their FY 08 budget
request with some modifications for additional personnel, salary increases, increased costs for the County
Employees’ Health Plan, anticipated grant awards, and the related costs to house jail inmates and juvenile
inmates outside of Converse County. Each of the following departments were allocated additional positions:
one half-time position each to the Commission and Clerk’s Office; one full-time position each to the Sheriff's
Office, Jail , Assessor’s Office and GIS Departments. Elected Officials/Department Heads were allowed to
offer up to a 3% merit increase for their employees. Later in the process, the Commission gave a $1,400 base
pay adjustment (COLA) to full-time employees with the exception of the Elected Officials. Half time employees
were given a prorated increase. The Commission’s budget had a significant percentage increase as there will
be & Commissioners effective January 1, 2009.

Four road/bridge projects were addressed with the FY 09 budget. Funding for these projects will not come
from the general fund, but will be addressed through specific road project funds and/or grants:

Antelope Coal Mine Road (CR 37) Reconstruction: $3,000,000 project. WYDOT-Industrial Road
Fund, $1,000,000; SLIB-Mineral Royalty Grant, $1,500,000; County, $500,000..

Jenne Trail (CR 34) Reconstruction: $345,340 project. CMAQ grant, $95,340; County, $250,000.
Tank Farm Road (CR 27) Bridge: $3,127,616 project. WYDOT Bros grant $2,664,302; County
$463,314.

Bridger Crossing (CR 71) Reconstruction: $100,000 from the County to prepare a grade crossing.
The Wyoming Department of Transportation and Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad are helping
with a cost share towards crossing signals and arms at this same location.

Y VvV Vv

Note: The County has around 640 miles of county roads, with most being unpaved. The Commission
is addressing many road, bridge, and culvert projects that are required to maintain the road system. Listed
above are the most costly projects this year and are listed because of grant applications. For the most
part, the County Road & Bridge Department addresses other road projects through their operating budget,
The $1,313,314 in identified projects and over $1.9 million in the R&B operating budget reflects the
County’'s commitment fo maintain and repair its roads.

The County will fund an addition to the Youth Development Services' Group Home (which the County
owns) and is considering enlarging the County Heaith Department building at a cost of approximately
$250,000,

The three fire departments received most of their requested funding in an effort to provide for the safety
and security of the county residents. The County provided equipment replacement funds to the Douglas
and Glenrock Fire Departments, as well as an additional $70,000 to be used by the Fire Suppression
Authority Board for equipment replacement.

The County was able to put $2,650,000 in an Operating Reserve account, which is up $150,000 from the
previous year. The Building/Maintenance Reserve account has a general fund commitment of $390,000. The
Equipment Reserve Account has a general fund appropriation of $325,000 for future equipment needs. The
County funded “Aid to Others" at a $516,000 level, down a bit from the previous FY.

Overall, the County is in geod financial condition going into the current fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Converse County’s finances for all those with

an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information should be addressed
to the County Clerk, 107 North 5™ Street, Douglas, WY 82633.

-10-
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Converse County, Wyoming

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Nonpooled cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Other receivables
Inventories
Pue from other funds
Due from other governments
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Restricted assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Notes receivable
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Infrastructure
Other capital assets
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
QCutstanding warrants
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits held in trust
Deferred revenues
Current maturities of long-term debt
Estimated third party payer settlement
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Bond reserves
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

11 -

Primary
Government
Governmental Compenent
Activities Units
$ 7,526,518 $ 9,335,544
373,646 —_
6,594,988 4,188,905
71,913 46,652
108,979 5,866,259
— 174,057
— 1,471,696
9,115 —
612,473 296,740
— 182,192
15,297,632 _ 21,562 045
— 1,821.158
112,684 —
— 594,889
2,021,950 6,659,561
31,497,521 —
11,695,831 38,811,463
(28,175,107) (18,149,951)
17,152,879 27,915,962
32,450,511 51,399,165
844,851 —
440,769 1,659,742
110,046 1,361,517
371,078 —
43,839 —
— 850,679
— 544 527
1,810,583 4,416 465
131,854 288,535
— 8,514.829
131,854 8,803,364
1,942 437 13,219,829
17,040,195 19,123,712
— 816,510
13,467,879 18,239,114
$30508074  $38179.336



Converse County, Wyoming
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Net (Expenses) Revenue &

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capital Govern-
Charges for Grants and  Grants and mental Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions _ Activities Units
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 2955467 $ 291,172 $ 938,233 § — $(1,726,062) $ —
Public safety 4,193,234 342,835 410,265 — (3,440,134) —
Public works 2,316,419 1,900 174,661 305,706 (1,834,152) —
Health, welfare and
recreation 829,160 28,231 190,107 — {610,822) —
Conservation 97,589 — — — {97,589) —
Total Primary
Government $10,391,869 § 664,138 $ 1713266 $§ 305706 $(7.708,759) § —
Component Units $35.041.118 $34748361 3 101,931 $ 1604677 $ —  $ 1,413,851
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales taxes 3,369,854 —_
Property taxes 4,326,081 —
Property taxes, levied for special purpose 146,282 2,367,297
(Gas and special fuel tax 433,139 —
Severance fax 291,280 —
Other taxes 744,232 220,269
Interest and investment earnings 484,739 501,881
Gain (loss) on asset disposal {98,393) 16,172
Miscellaneous 159,416 82,898
Subtotal, General Revenues 9,856,630 3,188,517
Changes in net assets 2,147,871 4,602,368
Net assets, beginning of year, as adjusted 28.360,203 33,576,968
Net assets, end of year $30,508,074 $38,179.336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

-2 -



BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Nonpooled cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:

General accounts receivable

Property taxes
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Notes receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds
Outstanding warrants
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held in trust
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for non-current
notes receivable

Unreserved, designated for

emergency expenditures
Reserved for buifding maintenance
Reserved for other purpcses
Unreserved, undesignated
Undesignated, reported in:

Special revenue funds

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

Converse County, Wyoming

Nonmajor
Govern- Total
General mential Primary

Fund Funds Government
$6,805349 § 631,169 $ 7,526,518
373,646 — 373,646
6,029,871 — 6,029,971
— 57,894 57,894

67,119 4,794 71,813
148,566 14,556 163,122
612,473 — 612,473

— 112,684 112.684
$14.127124 $§ 821,097 514,948,221
] — $ 107,758 $ 107,758
844,851 — 844,851
139,728 141,041 280,769
110,046 — 110,046
371,078 — 371,078
32,808 35,729 68,537
1,498,511 284,528 1,783,039
— 112,684 112,684
1,334,947 8,000 1,342,947
2,381,238 — 2,381,238
350,000 — 350,000
8,662,428 —_ 8,562,428
— 415,885 415,885
12.628613 536,569 13,165,182
$14,127124 § 821,097 $14.948221

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellanecus

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health, welfare and recreation
Conservation

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund balances - beginning, as adjusted

Fund balances - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Nonmajor
Govern- Total
General mental Primary
Fund Funds Government
$10,060,235 $ 163,916 $10,224151
6,590 — 6,590
512,475 558,555 1,071,030
462,992 166,247 629,239
432,330 — 432,330
157,963 95,838 253,801
11,632,585 984,556 12,617,141
2,904,407 — 2,904,407
3,497,539 509,462 4,007,001
2,400,803 — 2,400,803
218,479 612,505 830,984
98,584 — 98,584
728,152 129,423 867.575
9,847,964 1.251,390 11,069,354
1,784,621 {266,834) 1,517,787
10,843,992 803,403 11,647,395
$ 12628613 §_ 536,569 $13.165182



Converse County, Wyoming

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2008

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounis reperted for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in government activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Property taxes receivabie will be collected this year, but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures, and therefore are not recorded in the funds.

One internal service fund is used by management to charge
the cost of insurance to individual funds. Assets and liabilities
of the internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
pertod and therefere are not reported in the funds.
Compensated absences

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,
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$ 13,165,182

17,040,195

24,699

409,852

{131.854)
$ 30,508,074



Converse County, Wyoming
RECCNCILIATICN OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,517,787

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures,
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital

outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 601,123
Loss on disposal of capital assets {98,393)
Internal Service fund change in net assets. 130,617

Some property tax will not be coilected for several months after
the County’s fiscal year end, they are not considered

“available” revenues in the governmental funds. (3.263)
Change in net assets of government activities $ 2,147 871

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2008

Primary
Government
Internal
Service
Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ —
Investments 565,017
Accounts Receivable 51.084
Total current assets 616,101
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Due to other funds 46 249
Accounts payable 160,000
Total current liabilities 206,249
NET ASSETS $ 409,852

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS — PROPRIETARY FUND

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Costs of services

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
Nonoperating revenues:

Interest revenue

Total nonoperating
revenues

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Net Assets - beginning

Net Assets - ending

Converse Colinty, Wyoming

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Primary
Government
Internal
Service
Fund

1,097,973
1,097,973

991,610
991,610
106,363

24 254

i e

24,254
130,617

279,235

$ 409852



Converse County, Wyoming
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Net cash used in
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer from other funds

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income
Purchase of investments

Net cash provided by
investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Primary
Government -
Internal
Service
Fund

$ 1,053,894
(881,610)

172,284

46,249

24,254
(24.254)

218,633

(218.533)
5;



Converse County, Wyoming
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Primary
Government
Internal
Service
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash
Provided {(Used} by Operating Activities
Operating income $ 106,363
Adjustments to reconcile net income fo net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Increase in accounts receivable (44,079)
Increase in accounts payable 110,000
Total adjustments 65,921
Net cash provided by
operating activities $ 172284

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY
NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,363,583
Taxes receivable 397,762
Total Assets $ 1,761,345
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds $ 9,115
Due to others 1,532,297
Deferred revenues 219,833
Total Liabilities $ 1.761.345

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming
CONMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
CONPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2008

County Weed & Pest County
Airport County Control Library Tourism
Board Hospital District Board Board Total
ASSETS
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 164,036 $8,210,0556 3 483,707 $ 455164 $ 42582 $ 9,335,544
Investments 324,094 3,656,646 — 208,185 —_ 4,188,905
Taxes receivable 3,357 19,397 3,366 20,532 — 46,652
Accounts receivable, net — 5,800,410 38,939 26,910 — 5,866,259
Other receivables 1,106 170,934 — 2,017 — 174,057
Inventories — 1,234,105 237,591 — — 1,471,696
Due from other governments 132,536 — — - 164,204 296,740
Other current assets — 182,192 — — — 182,192
Total current assefs 625129 19273739 743,603 712,788 206,786 21,562,045
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents — 1,291,158 —_ — — 1,281,168
Investment 30,000 600,000 — — — 630,000
Total restricted assets 30,000 1,891,158 p— — p— 1.921.158
Noncurrent assets:
Physician’'s receivable — 126,353 — — — 126,353
Investment in Limited Liability Co. — 382,509 — — — 382,509
Deferred financing cost, net — 86,027 — — — 86,027
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 4,264,962 2,281,999 12,000 100,600 — 6,659,561
Other capital assets,
net of depreciation 4,314,308 15,981,760 135,874 229 570 — 20,661,512
Total noncurrent assets 8579270 18,858,648 147 874 330,170 — 27,915,962
TOTAL ASSETS 9234399 40,023 545 891,477 1,042 958 206,786 _51.399.1865
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 139,066 1,305,996 183,655 31,025 — 1,669,742
Accrued expenses and benefits 4,302 1,330,138 27,077 — — 1,361,517
Estimated third party
payer setflement —_ 544,527 — — - 544 527
Current maturities of long term debt — 850,679 — — — 850.679
Total current liabilities 143,368 4,031,340 210,732 31.025 — 4,416,465
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences — 225,461 45,123 17,951 — 288,535
Long-term debt, net of
current maturities — 8.514.829 — - — 8,514.829
Total noncurrent liabilities — 8,740,290 45,123 17,951 — 8,803,364
TOTAL LIABILITIES 143368 12,771,630 255,855 48,976 — 13,219,829
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 8,579,270 10,066,398 147,874 330,170 — 19,123,712
Restricted, bond reserves — 816,510 — — — 816,510
Unrestricted 511.761 16,368,007 487,748 663,812 206,786 18,239.114
TOTAL NET ASSETS $9,091,031 $27,251.915 § 635622 § 993082 § 206786 $38,179.336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

County Weed & Pest County
Airport County Conirol Library Tourism
Board Hospital District Board Board Total
EXPENSES $ 518,883 $32,800996 $ 802,850 $ 731,519 $ 186,870 $35,041,118
PROGRANM REVENUES
Charges for services 75,152 34,430,642 225,094 17,473 — 34,748,361
Operating grants and confributions 1,600 65,731 — 34,600 — 101,931
Capital grants and contributions 1,439,348 165,329 — — — 1,604,677
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,616,100 34,661,072 225,094 52,073 — 36,454,969
Net (expenses) revenues 997,217 1,860,706 (577,756) (679,446) {186,870) 1,413,851
GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes:
Property 101,297 1,051,121 553,865 661,014 — 2,367,297
Other 11,033 — — — 209,236 220,269
Investment and interest income 20,870 442 617 15,262 17,568 5,564 501,881
Gain (loss) on asset disposal — 16,172 —_ — — 16,172
Miscellaneous — 24,343 57.816 238 500 82,898
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 133,200 1,534,253 626,943 678,821 215,300 _ 3,188,517
Change in net assets 1,130,417 3,394,959 49,187 (625) 28,430 4,602,368
Net assets, beginning 7.960,614 23,856,956 586,435 994,607 178,356 _33.,576,968
Net assets, ending $ 9091031 $27.251915 $ 635622 § 993,982 § 206,786 $38,179,336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity

The County (primary government) is 2 municipal corporation governed by three elected commissioners. The
County provides the following services as authorized by statute: public safety, road and bridge maintenance and
operation, health and social services, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the County and its component units, entities for which the County is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County’s
operations and data from those units is combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented
component units, on the other hand, are reporied in separate columns in the combined financial statements to
emphasize they are legally separate from the County. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30
yaar end. The County has no blended component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The financial data of the following component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the County. Various members of the governing boards of all these component units are
appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.

1. The Tourism Board serves the County by promoting tourism within the County. It's governed by a board
of which some members are appointed by the County. The Tourism Board is fiscally dependent upon
the County because the Tourism Board cannot issue bonded debt without approval by the County.
Furthermere, the Tourism Board could notreasonably be included in the financial statements of another
financial reporting entity. The Board does not issue separate audited financial statements.

2, The Weed and Pest Controf District was established for the purpese of implementing and pursuing an
effective program for the control of weeds and pests within the County. The District is fiscally dependent
upon the County because the Board of Commissioners approves the District's budget and levies taxes
on behaif of the District. Separate audited financial statements of the District can be obtained from the
District's administrative offices Jocated in Douglas, Wyoming.

3. The County Library Board maintains and manages the operations of the County Library and library
system. The Library Board is fiscally dependent upon the County because the Board of Commissicners
approves the Library's budget, levies taxes and must approve any debt issuances. The Library's taxes
are levied under the taxing authority of the County and are included as part of the County's total tax
levy. The County Library includes the financial data of its compeonent unit, the Converse County Library
Foundation. The Board does not issue separate audited financial statements.

4. The County Airport Board provides and maintains aviation facilities for the County. The Airport Board
is fiscally dependent upon the County because the Board of Commissioners approves the Airport's
budget, levies taxes and must approve any debt issuances. Separate audited financial statements can
be obtained from the Board's administrative offices located in Douglas, Wyoming.

5. The County Hospital provides and maintains a hospital facility for Converse County. The Hospital is
fiscally dependent upon the County because the Board of Commissioners approves the Hospital's
budget and levies taxes, Separate audited financial statements of the Hospital can be obtained from
the Hospital's administrative offices located in Douglas, Wyoming.

Jointly Governed Organization

The Fire Suppression Authority was formed by the Converse County Municipal and County Joint Powers Board
consisting of the County Commissioners, the City of Douglas, Wyoming, the Town of Glenrock, Wyoming, the
Town of Rolling Hills, Wyoming, and the Town of Lost Springs, Wyoming. The Converse County Joint Powers
Boards is a separate legal entity created in accordance with the provisions of the Wyoming Joint Powers Act.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 the county aflocated $551,520 to the Fire Suppression Authority.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

Basis of Presentation
GASB Statement No. 34 establishes a financial reporting model for state and local governments that includes the

addition of management's discussion and analysis, government-wide financial statements, required
supplementary information and the elimination of the effects of internal service activities and the use of account

groups to the fund financial statements and notes.

The GASB determined that fund accounting has and will continue to be essential in helping governments to
achieve fiscal accountability and should, therefore, be retained. The GASBE also determined that government-
wide financial statements are needed to allow users of financial reperis to assess a government's operational
accountability. The GASB model integrates fund-based financial reporting and government-wide financial
reporting as complementary components of a single comprehensive financial reporting model.

The government-wide financial statements {i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most
part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmentat activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government
is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is

financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other itemns not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general

revenues.

The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds, with separate statements presented
for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each

displayed in a separate column.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange fransactions are those in which each party receives and gives
up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, resulf from
non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental fund:

L The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

In addition, the County reports the following fund types:

. The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of the self-funded health plan
provided by the County on a cost reimbursement basis.

. The Agency Fund accounts for fiduciary assets held by the County in a custodial capacity as an

agent on behalf of others. The County’s agency funds are used to account for taxes and other
revenues collected for other governments.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even

though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported
using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
at the levy date, Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
generally recognized when they become both measurable and available. Revenues are considered fo be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal pericd. Expenditures are generally recorded as the liabilities are incurred,
if measurable,

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The County also
has the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities, subject to this
same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-wide financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

. Prior to May 15, the County Clerk submits to the Board of County Commissioners a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

. A public hearing is conducted on the third Monday in July to obtain public comments.
. The budget is adopted on the third Tuesday of July.
L After publication of notice, the Board of County Commissioners may by Resolution transfer any

unexpended appropriation balance or part thereof from one fund, department or account to
another. All appropriations, excluding appropriations for capital projects, lapse at the close of the
budget year to the extent they are not expended. The level of expenditure conirol for budget
purposes is the department level. Under the Wyoming Department of Audit interpretation of the
budgetary statutes each individual Special Revenue Fund is considered a department.

. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

. Once the budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members
of Board of County Commissioners. Amendments are presented to the Board at a budget transfer
hearing. Each amendments must have Board approval.

L During the year ended June 30, 2008, the budget for the General Fund was amended through
a Budget Transfer Hearing.

L The combined statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances-budget and
actual for the General Fund present comparisons of legally adopted budgets with actual data on
a budgetary basis. Since the budgets are presented on a cash basis and the financial statements
are presented in conformity with GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles), a note is
presented showing the reconciliation.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriations, is employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures
or liabilities. The County had no material outstanding encumbrances at year end.

Investments
Investments are carried at fair value and consist primarily of money market accounts, certificates of deposit, funds
invested in the Wyoming State Investment Pool {(WYOSTAR), the Wyoming Government Investment Fund, and

U.8. Government securities.

Restricted Assets
The investments of the compenent unit, County Airport Board have heen set aside for financial proof of assurance

in accordance with DEQ requirements and regulations. Cash and investments of the component unit, County
Hospital have been restricted due to transfer to a bond agent for deposit to the bond reserve fund to pay future
bond payments, as part of certain bond covenants fo service outstanding debt and also proceeds from a capital
lease at year end for which the equipment had not been acquired.

Inventories
Inventories of the proprietary fund type component units are valued at the lower of cost or market on afirstin, first

out basis.

Inventories of the governmental fund type component units are valued at the lower or cost of market on a firstin,
first out basis.

Notes Receivable

Loans receivable represent the right to receive repayment for certain loans made by the County. These loans
are based upon written agreements between the County and the various loan recipients. Reported loans
receivable is equally offset by a fund balance reserve in the governmental fund types that indicates that it dces
not constitute available expendable resources.

Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or
services rendered. The balances from these transactions are classified as “due from other funds” or "due to other
funds” on the balance sheet. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities

columns of the Statement of Net Assets.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

Due From Other Governments
Due from other governments includes amounts due from grantors for grants for specific programs. Program and

capital grants for capital assets are recorded as receivables and revenues when all eligibility requirements are
met. Revenues received in advance of project costs being incurred or for which eligibility requirements have not
been met are deferred. Inthe governmental funds, revenue recognition depends on the timing of cash collections

(availability).
Accumulated Unpaid Vacation, Sick Pay and Other Employee Benefit Amounts

Allregular, full-time employees are entitied to vacation leave as earned with the County. Payment in lieu of annual
leave is to be made if an employee terminates employment or dies and has annuai leave to his credit. The liability
for these vested vacations has been accrued in the government-wide and component unit financial statements.

Cash Flows
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Internal Service Fund considers all highly liquid investments

{(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be a cash equivalent.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditure/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Capital Assets
General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reporied in the proprietary fund. These

assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund

financial statements.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. The County maintains a
capitalization threshold of $5,000 for buildings, site improvements, and equipment and vehicles. Infrasiructure,
as required by GASB #34, is included in this year's report. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not.

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Building and improvements 15-30 years
Equipment and vehicles 5-15 years
Infrastructure 20-30 years

Fund Balance

The County reserves those portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for a specific future use or which
do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation ar expenditure.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subjectto change. Unreserved fund
balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is available for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity
reserves have been established for equipment replacement and building maintenance.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

Net Assets
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of

related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, consfruction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through the enabling legislation adopted by the
County or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governmenits.

NOTE B- CASH AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the County to investin securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or agencies
of the United States government, bank certificates of deposit, shares or savings certificates of savings and loan
associations, Tennessee Valley Authority bonds and notes and export-import bank notes and guaranteed

participations.

The County's cash and investments consist primarily of bank deposits, certificates of deposit, Federal Home Loan
Bank bonds and funds invested in the Wyoming State Investment Pool (WYOSTAR).The County invests in the
Wyoming Government Investment Fund (WGIF), a pooled investment. WGIF has been determined to be allowable
under Wyoming Statutes by the State Department of Audit even though actual title to the collateral is not in the
County's name due to the brief duration of transactions.

Credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Under an investment agreement with WGIF, the County has invested monies ata fixed contract rate
ofinterest. The Wyoming Government Investment Fund is currently rated AAAmM from Standard and Poor's Rating
Service.

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the County will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Deposits held in County bank accounts are insured by
Federal depository insurance or are coliateralized with securities held by the custodian bank under safekeeping
or federal reserve receipts in the name of the County and the financial institution in accordance with Wyoming
State Statutes and County policy. As of June 30, 2008, the County had balances in banks of $11,888,760 which

were fully collateralized or insured.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty {e.g. broker-
dezler) fo a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies
only to direct investment in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's
indirect investment in securities through the use of a government investment pool.

Concentration of Credit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the
County's investment in a single issuer. At June 30, 2008 the County has invested $388,683 in WYOSTAR,
$343,633 in the Wyoming Government Investment Fund, $2,752,521 in fixed income securities and $2,739,600
in time deposits.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generaily, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown in the basic financial statements follows:

Primary Component
Government Units
Carrying Amounts:
Cash on hand $ 2,080 3 250
Carrying amount of deposits 12,372,673 15,445,357
US governmental securities 2,752,521 —
WYOSTAR 387,828 —
Wyoming Government Investment Fund 343,633 —

$15,858,735  $15,445,607

Governmental and Business-Type activities:

Cash and equity in pooled cash $ 7,526,518 $ 9,335,544
investments 6,594,088 4,188,905
Non pocled cash 373,646 —
Resftricted assets -—_ 1,821,158
Total governmental and business-type activities 14,495,152 15,445,607
Fiduciary cash and equity in pooled cash 1,363,583 —
Total cash and investments $15.858,735 $15.445,607

NOTE C - PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of May 11. Taxes are levied on or about August 1 and
payable in two installments on September 1 and March 1. The County bills and collects its own property taxes
and also taxes for all municipalities and political subdivisions within the County.

Collections and remittances of these taxes for other taxing districts are accounted for in the respective agency
funds of the County. County property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they resuit in
current receivables, which means when collected within the current period or expected to be collected within 60
days of the fiscal year end to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

{This intentionally left blank)
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of debt fransactions of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Indebtedness New Debt Debt Indebtedness  Amount Due
July 1. 2007 Incurred Retired June 30, 2008  Within One Yr
Compensated Absences $§ 131854  § — $ — $ 131,854 $ —

The following is a summary of debt transactions of the County Hospital (a Component Unit) for the year ended
June 30, 2008;

Indebhtedness New Debt Debt Indebtedness Amount Due
July 1, 2007 Incurred Retired June 30, 2008  Within One Yr
Revenue bonds $ 6,595,000 $ 2,320,000 $ (1950000 % 8,720,000 % 280,000
Less deferred amounts
on refunding {1,073,229) — 57,233 (1,015,996) —
Less bond discounts {32,642) — 1,718 (30,924) —
Short-Term Notes 14,283 — (1,779) 12,504 12,504
l.ease/purchase
obligations 2,218,027 — {538.103) 1,679,924 558,175
Total § 7721439 $ 2,320,000 $ (675931) $ 9.365.508 $ 850679

The County Hospital leases certain equipment under capital leases, some of which provide for the purchase of
leased equipment for nominal amounts at the end of the lease term. The average interest rate on the leases is
4.08%.The following is an analysis of equipment leased under capital leases:

Equipment $ 2,918,830
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,485.220)
Carrying value $ 1433540

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future lease payments under capital leases fogether with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2008:

Year Ending
June 30

2009 $ 626,396
2010 819,500
2011 389,600
2012 60,768
2013 60,768
2014 80,768
1,817,800
Less amount representing interest {137.786)

Present value of long-term obligations
under capital leases and notes payable $ 1680014

On October 27, 2005, the Converse County Hospital Board issued $6,135,000 in revenue bonds to advance
refund $4,990,000 in outstanding bonds. The bonds were used to partially refund the Hospital's outstanding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, The bonds bear interest at 5.10% to 5.50%. The remaining bonds are due at
maturity or through mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements in annual installments of $80,000 to
$495,000 through June 30, 2026. The revenue bonds are collateralized by revenue of the Hospital established
by the trust indenture. The refunded bonds, which are outstanding as June 30, 2008, are not included in the
Hospital's outstanding debt since the Hospital has in-substance satisfied its obligation through advance refunding.
Although the advance refunding resuited in recognition of an accounting loss of $1.1 million, the Hospital will
recognize a net present value savings of $400,055. The loss is being amortized aver the period of the original
hond issue using the effective interest method.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE D - LONG TERM DEBT-CONTINUED

On November 1, 2000, the Hospital issued $6,810,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 with an average interest
rate of 7.35%. The bond proceeds were used to construct an addition to the current hospital. On October 27,
2008, bonds with a par value of $4,890,000 were refunded with proceeds from the Hospital's Series 2005
Revenue Bonds. The remaining bonds are due at maturity or through mandatory sinking fund redemption
reguirements in annual installments of $130,000 to $145,000 through June 30, 2011.The bonds bear interest at
6.50%.The revenue bonds are collateralized by revenue of the Hospital established by trust indenture.

On June 5, 2008, the Hospital issued a $2,320,000 in Subordinate Lien Hospital Revenue Bond, Series 2008, The
bond was purchased by USDA Rural Development. The bond proceeds are to be used for remodeling and
fmprovements fo the current facility. The bonds are due at maturity or through mandatory sinking fund redemption
requirements in annual installments of $70,000 fo $175,000 through June 30, 2028. The interest rate on the bond
is 4.75%. The revenue bonds are collateralized by revenue of the Hospital established by the trust indenture.
Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity for the years ending June 30 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2009 ’ $ 280,000 3% 451,815
2010 295,000 435,670
2011 315,000 418,545
2012 410,000 399,450
2013 425,000 378,455
2014-2018 2,270,000 1,548,288
2019-2023 2,530,000 881,063
2024-2028 2,185,000 235,375

$ 8720000 $ 4748661

(This intentionally left blank)
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Converse County, Wyoming
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the changes in capital assets as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
Primary Government:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,000,325 $ — $ — $ 2,000,325
Construction in Progress 1,325,183 21.625 1,325,183 21625
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 3,325,508 21,625 1,325,183 2,021,950
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 29,036,414 2,461,107 — 31,497,521
Buildings and structures 4,027,577 46,546 — 4,074,123
Machinery, equipment, and
office fixtures 7,398.112 837,376 613,780 7,621,708
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 40,462 103 3,345,029 613,780 43,193,352
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure 19,370,333 756,848 — 20,127,181
Buildings and structures 3,491,938 26,172 — 3,518,110
Machinery, equipment, and
office fixtures 4 387,874 535,634 393.692 4,529 816
Total accumulated depreciation _ 27,260,145 1,318,654 393,692 28,175,107
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 13,211,958 2,026,375 220.088 15,018,245
Primary Government,
capital assets, net $ 16,537,466 $ 2048000 $.1.545 271 $ 17,040,195
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions for primary government as follows:
General government $ 81210
Health, welfare and recreation 6,379
Public safety 229,008
Public works 1,002,057
Total $1,318,654

(This intentionally left blank)
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2008

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Component Units:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deietions  June 30, 2008
Weed and Pest Control:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 12,000 3 — $ — 3 12.000
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 12,000 — — 12,000
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 141,509 8,341 — 149,850
Machinery, equipment and
office fixtures 218,153 6,088 21,639 202,582
lLess accumulated depreciation (212,174) {23,539) 19,155 {216,558)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 147,488 (8.130) 2.484 135,874
Total capital assets, net $ 159,488 3 (9.130) % 2,484 $ 147.874
County Library Board:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 100600 3 — 3 — $ 100600
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 100,600 — — 100,600
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 447 288 3,100 —_ 450,388
Machinery, equipment and
office fixtures 167,402 14,718 — 182,120
Less accumulated depreciation {373,458) (29,480) — (402,938)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 241,232 (11,662) — 229,570
Total capital assets, net $ 341832 $  (11,662) $ — $ 330,170

(This intentionally left blank)

-34 -



Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Component Units - Continued;

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
County Airport Board:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,741,061 $ — $ — $ 2,741,061
Construction in progress 55,179 1,468,722 o 1,523,901
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 2,796,240 1,468,722 — 4,264,962
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 9,079,773 — — 9,079,773
Equipment and vehicles 166,768 2,347 — 169,115
Buildings and structures 516,386 — — 516,386
Less accumulated depreciation {5,060,700) (320,266} — (5,450,966}
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 4,702 227 (387.919) — 4,314,308
Total capital assets, net $ 7.498 467 $ 1.080,803 3 — $ 8579270
County Hospital:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ —_ $ 1,644,023 — $ 1,644,023
Land 587 576 50,400 — 837,976
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 587,576 1,694.423 — 2,281,999
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 187,235 — — 187,235
Building 16,654,075 117,741 4,476 16,767,340
Equipment 9,986,513 1,487,021 366,860 11,106,674
Less accumulated depreciation (10,678,799) (1,727 388) {326,698) (12,079,489)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 16,149,024 (122 626) 44,638 15,981,760
Total capital assets, net $16,736600 § 1571797 $ 44638 $18,263,759

NOTE F - NOTES RECEIVABLE

The County special revenue fund’s notes receivable at June 30, 2008 is comprised of the following:

Economic development loans $ 262,098
Less allowance for uncollectible {149,414)
Notes receivable, net $ 112,684
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE G - ESTIMATED MALPRACTICE COSTS - COUNTY HOSPITAL

The Hospitalis insured by a claims made policy for the purpose of providing professional and patient care liability
insurance. Claims may be asserted against the Hospital arising from services provided to patients. The Hospital
is unable to determine the ullimate cost of the resolution of such potential claims and, accordingly, has not
accrued any amounts which would occur should the insurance policy not cover a claim, or should a claim exceed
the policy limits. The insurance company will notify the Hospital, in the event that this would happen and at this
time, no such notification has been made. Settied claims resulting from these risks have notexceeded commercial

insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

NOTE H- RISK MANAGEMENT

Primary Government
The County currently participates in a self funded health insurance program for employees, funded by employees

and the County. As a pait of the self-funded insurance program the County purchased an aggregate excess loss
insurance policy. The policy was purchased to insure the County's self-funded program from unlimited exposure
for payment of participating employees’ medical and dental expenses. The policy provides a net claim limit per
covered participant of $40,000. A liahility exists at June 30, 2008, for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The
County's third party administrator estimates these claims to be $160,000 which is included in claims payable at
year end. Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount, inciuding IBNR from fiscal year 2007 were:

Current Year
Beginning of Claims and Balance
Fiscal Year Changes in Total At Fiscal
Liability Estimates Contributions Year-End

$ 50,000 $ 807179 $ 697,179 $ 160,000

The County is exposed {o various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; business
interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries; and natural disasters. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters.

Component Unit - County Hospital

The Hospital is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; business
interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries; and natural disasters. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters. The Hospital also contributes to the Wyoming Workers'
Compensation Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years. |n addition, the Hospital is a County Hospitai and accordingly, Wyoming Statutes place a cap on the
award of damages in lawsuits filed against Wyoming municipal entities.

NOTE | - PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

The component units - Weed and Pest Control District and County Airport Board are members of the Wyoming
Local Government Liability Program (LGLP). The LGLP was created to formulate, develop and administer a
program of modified self-funding for the LGLP's membership, obtain lower costs for liability coverage and develop
a comprehensive loss control program. The District and Airport Board pay an annual premium to the LGLP for
its liability coverage. The District's agreementwith the LGLP provides that the LGLP will be self-sustaining through
member premiums and will provide individual loss coverage for member districts for claims of $250,000 per
person/$500,000 per occurrence. The respective boards carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE J - PENSION PLAN

Primary Government

Plan Description. The Converse County Sheriff's office and the component unit Weed and Pest Control District
participate in the Wyoming Retirement System, (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement system, (PERS), that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for the State of Wyoming
and various political subdivisions of the State. The System provides retirement, death and disability benefits.
These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statutes, and are explained in the
System's handbook. The Wyoming Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Wyoming
Retirement System, 6101 Yellowstone Road, Suite 500, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 or by calling {307) 777-7691.

Funding Policy. Covered County Sheriff's office employees are required fo contribute 8.6% of their salary to the
plan. The County is required to contribute at least 8.6% of participants total salary. Total confribution equals
17.2% of eligible payroll. The County's contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and
2006 were $119,512, $100,838, and $90,261, respectively.

Weed and Pest Control District employees are reguired to contribute 5.57% of their annual covered salary and
the district is required fo contribute 5.68% of the annual covered payroll. Legislation enacted in 1979 allows the
employer to pay any or all of the employee's contribution in addition to the matching contribution. The District
currently pays 100% of the required employees contribution. Contribution rates are established by Title 9, Chapter
3 of the Wyoming Statutes. The District's contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007,
and 2006 were $14,312, $12,666, and $10,102, respectively.

NOTE K - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Primary Government

The County offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plans, available to all County employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary untit future
years. The deferred compensation is not available fo employees until termination, retirement, death, or

unforeseeable emergency.

The County follows the policy of contributing up to 8.8% of an employee's compensation. For the year ended June
30, 2008 the County's matching share of contributions totaled $161,866.

Component Unit - County Hospital

The Hospital offers its employees a deferred compensation plan that is structured in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The Hospital follows the policy of matching up to 3 percent of employee
compensation provided the total deferred compensation amount cannot exceed $15,500 per participant, $20,500
for age 50 and older. The Hospital's contribution for matching was $211,782 for the year ending June 30, 2008,

NOTE L - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of due to/from other funds as of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Due From Due To

Major Fund:

General Fund $ 148,566 $ —
Nonmajor Funds:

Best Beginning 5,441 —

Homeland Security Fund 9,115 64,197

Other Grant Fund —_ 43,561
Internal Service Fund: 46,249
Fiduciary Fund:

Agency Fund —_ 9,115

$ 163122 § 163122
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

NOTE M - CONTINGENCY
Component Unit - County Hospital

The Hospital has an agreement with Converse County Bank located in Douglas, Wyoming to sell its receivables
with recourse. In the event of a customer's default, the Hospital must repurchase the receivable from the bank.
At June 30, 2008, the Hospital is contingently liable in the amount of $12,504 relating to such receivables sold
with recourse.

From time to time, the Hospital has been named as a defendant in lawsuits wherein the plaintiff claims
malpractice. Management, with advice from counsel, believes all claims are covered by its existing malpractice
coverage policy which has a $25,000 deductible.

The Hospital feels that all pending cases will be settled within the amount of the Hospital's insurance coverage.
Legal counsel of the Hospital predicts that any liability to the Hospital not covered by the insurance policies is
extremely unlikely and no liability has been established, as the potential loss is uncertain.

Subsequent to year end, the Hospital was contacted by the Wyoming Fair Employment Program of a charge of
discrimination. A former employee discharged in January for misconduct filed a charge of religious discrimination.
However, all available evidence indicates that the employee was discharged for cause and that management was
not even aware of the religious affiliation at the time of termination. Legal counsel for the Hospital provided a
position statement on August 15, 2008. At this point the matter is still under investigation. It is too early to
determine the outcome.

As disclosed in note D, the Hospital issued additional bonds during the year to assist with the costs associated
with renovations on the 2nd and 3rd floors of the facility. As of June 30, 2008, the Hospital had expended
approximately $1.2 million and had commitments for the remaining $1.1 million.

Component Unit - County Airport Board
The board received approximately 54% of its support from Converse County. A significant reduction in the level

of this suppon, if this were to occur, may have a negative effect on the Board's operations.

NOTE N - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Component Unit - County Airport Board
The Airport's manager is the owner of a company which leases hangar and office space from the Board. Total rent

received for the year ended June 30, 2008 was $5,100.

NOTE O - INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

The Douglas Raceway Special Revenue Fund, Homeland Security Special Revenue Fund, and the Other Grant
Special Revenue Fund had deficit fund balances of $84,471, $38,790, and $32,958, respectively, at June 30,
2008.

The General fund had excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2008 for public
safety in the amount of $46,284. Funds sufficient to provide for the excess expenditures were made available from

other functions within the fund.

A prior period adjustmentwas made to decrease the balance of the Other Grant fund for $8,748, to reflect an error
in recording grants receivable in the prior year.

NOTE P - OPERATING LEASES
Component Unit-County Hospital

The Hospital has various monthly rentals. The Hospital is not required to make minimum future rental payments.
Total rental expense for the period ended June 30, 2008 was $644,195.
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Converse County, Wyoming
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual - Final Budget
Budgetary favorable/
Original Final Basis (unfavorabie}
REVENUES
Taxes $ 8,419,852 $8419,852 % 9,930,726 % 1,510,874
Licenses and permits 3,500 3,500 6,590 3,090
Intergovernmental revenues 555,000 555,000 530,880 (24,120)
Charges for services 276,500 276,500 462,992 186,492
Interest 160,000 160,000 432,330 272,330
Miscellaneous 40,401 40,401 157.963 117,562
TOTAL REVENUES 9.455 253 9,455 253 11,621,481 2,066,228
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 3,264,474 3,264,474 2,869,313 395,161
Public safety 3,230,950 3,438,492 3,484,776 (46,284)
Public works 2,439,533 2,670,757 2,461,462 209,295
Heaith, welfare and recreation 218,800 218,800 218,480 320
Conservation 116,975 116,975 98,607 18,368
Capital outlay 829,893 836,128 728,152 107,976
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,100,625 10,545,626 9,860,790 684 836
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (645,372) {1,090,373) 1,660,691 2,751,064
FUND BALANCES, beginning 10,843,992 10,843,992 10,843,992 —
FUND BALANCES, ending $10,198.620 $9753619 $12504683 § 2751064

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows
and GAAP revenues and expenditures

REVENUES
Actual amount (budgetary basis) from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP;

Adjustments {0 accrue property tax,
receivables, interest and other revenues

Total revenues as reported on the
statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

EXPENDITURES
Actual amount {budgetary basis) from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Accrual for retainage payable
Accrual for accounts payable

Total expenditures as reported on the
statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

-40 -
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$ 11,521,481

111,104

$ 11.632.585
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Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Federal Grantot/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.3. Department of Homeland Security:
Passed through Wyoming Department of Homeland Security:

Citizen Corp 97.087 06CDPCONCCHCCS - 3,976
EMPG 97.042 07CDPCONEMGCFY 3,081
EMPG 97.042 08CDPCONEMGCFS8 17,482
Citizen Corp 97.067 050DPCONCCHCCS 892
SHSG 97.067 060DPCONSCHSGE 64,272
SHSG 97.067 050DPCONSCHSG5 39,150
SHEG 97.067 070DPCONSCHSGY 16,100
Citizen Corp 97.067 070DPCONCCHCCY 192
LETPP 97.067 060DPCONLCHLES 3.474

148,619

—_— =

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through Wyoming Department of Transportation:

Highway Safety Program 20.600 N/A 995
SPEED Grant 20.600 N/A 31.253
32,248

U.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through Wyoming Business Council:
Community Development
Block Grant 14.228 N/A 25,000
25,000

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Wyoming Department of Family Services:
Public Health Emergency

Preparedness 93.283 N/A 74,492
TANF 93.558 N/A 40,822
MCH Title V Block Grant 93.994 N/A 55,123
VOTE 93.617 N/A 26,962
197,329

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
wWiC 10.578 N/A 16,787
Bankhead Jones 10.666 N/A 174,661
Converse County Firewise 10.664 N/A 46,350
237,798
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 641064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Converse County, Wyoming
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expendifures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Converse County,
Wyoming and is presented on the cash basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit

Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used
in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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Converse County, Wyoming
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2008

Rural Parks
Fire and Health Economic Enhanced
Protection Recreation  Depariment Development 911
ASSETS
Pocled cash and cash equivalents $ 35278 § 31,505 $ 50175 $ 217957 $ 105873
Property tax receivable 2,286 1,208 1,300 — —
Accounts receivable, net — — — —_ —
Due from other funds — — —
Notes receivahle — — — 112,684 —
TOTAL ASSETS $ 37564 $ 32713 $ 51475 $ 330641 % 105873
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds 3 — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Accounts payable — 131 11,884 — 12,991
Deferred revenue 2,192 774 752 — o
Total liabilities 2,192 205 12,636 — 12,991
Fund Balances:
Reserved for non-current
notes receivable — — — 112,684 —
Unreserved, designated for
emergency expenditures 8,000 - — — —
Unreserved, undesignated 27,372 31,808 38,839 217,957 92,882
Total fund balances 35,372 31,808 38,839 330,641 92,882
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES § 37564 § 32713 $ 51475 $ 330641 $ 105873

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Converse County, Wyoming
CONBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Douglas Homeland inmate Other
Raceway Security Welfare Grants
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ — $ — $ 44,514 $ —
Property tax receivable — — — —
Accounts receivable, net — 16,292 —_ 41,602
Due from other funds — 9,115 — —
Notes receivable ‘ — — — —
TOTAL ASSETS $ — $ 25407 $ 44514 8 41602
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds 3 — $ 64,197 3 — $ 43,561
Accounts payable 84,471 — 565 30,999
Deferred revenue — — — —
Total liabilities 84,471 64,197 565 74,560
Fund Balances:
Reserved for non-current
notes receivable — — — —
Unreserved, desighated for
emergency expenditures — — — —
Unreserved, undesignated (84.471) {38,790} 43 949 (32,958)
Total fund balances (84,471) {38,790) 43,949 (32,958)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 3 — $ 25407 $ 44514 $ 41602

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Converse County, Wyoming
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Best impact
HAHR Beginning Assistance
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents § 17,321 $ 22,785 $ 105,761
Property tax receivable —_ — —
Accounts receivable, net — — —
Due from other funds —_— 5,441 —
Notes receivable — — —
TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,321 $ 28,226 $ 105,761
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds $ — g — $ —_
Accounts payable — — —
Deferred revenue 16,316 15,695 —
Total liabilities 16,316 15,695 e
Fund Balances:
Reserved for non-current
notes receivable — — —
Unreserved, designated for
emergency expenditures — —_ —
Unreserved, undesignated 1,005 12,531 105,761
Total fund balances 1,005 12,531 105,761
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 3 17,321 3 28,226 $ 105,761

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds

$ 631,169
4,794
57,894
14,556
112,684

$ 821,007

$ 107,758
141,041

35,729

284,528

112,684

8,000
415,885

536,569

$ 821,097



Converse County, Wyoming
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Rural Parks
Fire and Health Economic Enhanced
Protection Recreation Department Development 911
REVENUES
Taxes $ — $ 72,242 $ 91674 § — $ —
Intergovernmental — — 10,117 — —
Charges for services — — 28,231 — 138,016
Miscellaneous 1,342 2.821 38,926 11,286 11,123
Total revenues 1,342 75.063 168,948 11,286 149,139
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety 2,885 — —_ — 394,416
Health, welfare and recreation —_ 84,740 217,565 -_ —
Capital outlay — — — — —
Total expenditures 2,885 84,740 217,565 — 394,416
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,543} (9,677) (48,617) 11,286 (245,277)
Fund balances - beginning 36.915 41,485 87.456 319,355 338,159
Fund balances - ending $ 35372 $§ 31808 § 388398 § 330641 $ 92882

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Converse County, Wyoming
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Health, welfare and recreation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

Fund balances - beginning, as adjusted

Fund balances - ending

Homeland

Security

$ —_—
131,434

131,434

15,333

115,805

131,138

296

(39,086)
$ (38,790

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

inmate Other

Welfare Grant HAHR

$ - $ — $ -
—_ 180,873 75,302

__ 20,684 — —
20,684 180,873 75,302
—_ 23,253 73,575
18,348 150,174 —
3.706 8,985 917
22,054 182,422 74,492
7,630 {1,549) 810
36,319 (31,409) 195

$ 43.949 3 (32,958) $ 1,005

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Converse County, Wyoming
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Health, welfare and recreation
Capital outlay :
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

Fund balances - heginning, as adjusted

Fund balances - ending

Best
Beqinning

$ —
55,123

601

55,724

55,123

55123

601

11,930

3 12,531

!

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Douglas Impact
Raceway Assistance

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue

Funds

$ — $ —
— 105,706

— 55

$ 163,916
558,555
166,247

95838

p— 105,761

984.556

86,555 —

509,462
612,505
129.423

86,555

1,251,390

(86,555) 105,761

(266,834)

803,403

2,084 —

$ _ (84.471) $ 105761

$ 536,569

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL.
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of County Commissioners
Converse County, Wyoming

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Converse County, Wyoming as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report therecon dated January 30, 2009. Other auditors were
engaged to audit the financial statements of the Weed and Pest Control District, County Hospital and the County
Airport Board, component units of the County. | conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, | considered Converse County's internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal
control over financial reporting.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, 1 identified certain deficiencies
in internal controt over financial reporting that | consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
County’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
County’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the County’s
internal control. | consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2008-1 to be a significant deficiency. The auditors of the
County Airport Board, Memorial Hospital of Converse County and the County Weed and Pest Control District
noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that they consider
to be significant deficiencies, and they are identified as items 2008-2 to 2008-6.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not
be prevented or detected by the County's internal control.

Member of Wyoming Seciety of Certified Public Accountants
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, | believe that none of the
significant deficiencies described in the attached schedule of findings and questioned
costs is a material weakness.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS - CONTINUED

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Converse County’s financial statements are free of

material misstatement, [ performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination

of financial statement amounts.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, | do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

However, | noted certain matters that | have reported to management of Converse County in a separate letter
dated January 30, 2009,

Converse County's response to the findings identified in my audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. | did not audit the County's response and, accordingly, | express no opinich on

it.

This report is intended solely for the infermation of the Board of County Commissioners, management, others
within the arganization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CPA AW, Lee.
CPA Advantage, LLC

Douglas, Wyoming
January 30, 2009
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Member of Wyoming Society of Certified Public Accountants
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of County Commissioners
Converse County, Wyoming

Compliance - | have audited the compliance of Converse County, Wyoming with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S, Office of Management and Budget {OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The
County's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. My
responsibility is o express an opinion on the County's compliance based on my audit,

i conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that ! plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on atestbasis, evidence about the County’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as | considered necessary in the circumstances. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable
basis for my opinion. My audit does not provide a legal determination on the County’s compliance with those
requirements,

In my opinion, Converse County, Wyoming complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

internal Control Over Compliance - The management of Converse County, Wyoming is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
confracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing my audit, | considered the
County's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effecton a major
federal program in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over

compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when

the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,

in the normal course, of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or Tracy Boner, CPA

detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal w PO BSOX 15

program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or 315 Walnut Street

combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s Douglas, WY 82633

noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program

that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Phone: 307-358-1818

entity's internal control. Fax: 307-358-8449
tracy@cpaadvantage.us
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO FACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 - CONTINUED

A materialweakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federaf program will
not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

My consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. | did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that | consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

This reportis intended solely for the information and use of the County Commissioners, management and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other

than these specified parties.

CePA A—vl/v-onid—?- St

CPA Advantage, LLC
Dougias, Wyoming
January 30, 2009
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Converse County, Wyoming

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

SECTION | — SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
+  Material weakness(es) identified?
= Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Noncoempliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
+  Material weakness(es) identified?
«  Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor’s report issued on
compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of Circular A-1337?

Identification of major programs:

Narme of Federal Program or Cluster

Homeland Security
VOTE

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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Unqualified
Yes X No
X Yes
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X __ None reported
Unqualified
Yes X No
CFDA Number(s)
97.267
93.617
$ 300,000
X Yes No



Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

SECTION [ — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2008-1 Converse County-Preparation of Financial Statements
Criteria: An integral part of the internal control system is the ability to prepare financial statements

including the necessary footnote disclosures.

Condition: The County does not have an individual with the expertise to prepare the financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Effect: Potential misstatements could exist within the County’s financial statements without being detected.

Recommendation: The County should evaluate the cost/benefit of having an employee with the expertise
to prepare financial statements.

Management response: Historically, the County has relied on the auditor to assist in preparing the
financial statements.

2008-2 County Airport Board-Segregation of Duties in Accounting Department

Criteria: Many small organizations rely on one or twa individuals to perform the accounting functions. Cne
or two employees in the accounting department does not provide adequate segregation of duties.

Condition: In our judgement, the Board's accounting staff is not large enough to permit adequate
segregation of duties as reported above. This lack of segregation of duties does not allow management to
detect and correct a material misstatement if present. Due to the size of the Board's staff it is anticipated
that this will be an ongoing finding.

Recommendation: In our judgement, management and those charged with governance need fo
understand the imporiance of this communication. However, due to the lack of resources available to
management to correct this weakness of segregation of duties, we recommend management mitigate this
weakness with possible compensating controls such as close supervision and monitoring by management
and by the governing board.

Auditee’s Response: Althcugh the accounting staff is too small to provide for adequate segregation of
duties, there are effective compensating controls in place. Physical control of documents and control of
check signature authority are two examples of measures used to compensate for the segregation issue.
Vouchers all require management approval, as well as invoices processed for payment. Ona monthly basis,
expenditures are reviewed by the Board and airport manager, and bank statements are reconciled and
reviewed. These controls provide adequate and effective safeguards to compensate for the lack of
segregation of responsibifities in the accounting department.

2008-3 County Airport Board-Auditor Generates the Annual Financial Statements Including
Footnotes

Criterfa: The Auditing Standards Board {(ASB) recently issued guidance to auditors related to an entity's
internal controls over financial reporting. Many small organizations rely on their auditor to generate the
annual financtal statements including footnotes. SAS No. 112 emphasizes that the auditor can not be part
of your system of internal control over financial reporting.

Condition: In our judgement, the Board's accounting personnel and those charged with governance, in
the of their assigned duties, lack the capabie skills to prepare the financial statements and related footnotes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and to detect and correct a material
misstatement, if present.
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Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Recommendation: In our judgement, management and those charged with governance need fo
understand the importance of this communication. However, due to the lack of resources available to
management to correct this significant deficiency in financial reporting, we recommend management
mitigate this weakness by having a heightened awareness of all transactions being reported.

Auditee’s Response: We believe Board members and management have the appropriate skills and
knowledge to understand the financial statements. The Board and management review and approve the
financial statements . The Board and management review and approve the financial statements along with
the journal entries proposed by the auditor as well as question various journal entries and financial
information, including the notes to the financial statements.

2008-4 County Airport Board-Payables and Receivables Are Not Adjusted at Year End

Criteria: The Auditing Standard Board (ASB) recently issued guidance to auditors related to an entity's
internal controls over financial reporting. SAS No. 112 states that material adjustments performed by the
auditor can not be part of your system of internal control.

Condition: The Board's accounting personnel, in the course of their assigned duties, are not recording ,
and adjusting payables and receivables at year end. This does not allow managementto detect and correct
a material misstatement if present.

Recommendation: [t should be noted that accounting personnel are capable and knowledgeable to record
and adjust payable and receivables. Also, property taxes receivable at year end is obtained from information
provided by the County Treasurer, which is available well after the year end closing of the books is done.
We recommend that the Board capture all the information at a certain period in time so accurate cash basis
information is available to properly file reports. After data is captured we recommend that prior year
payables be reversed and current year payables be recorded. Also, due to the fact that property tax
information is not available until after the year end closing is performed, we recommend that information
be obtained from the Treasurer and journal entries proposed to the audit firm.

Auditee Response: We concur with recommendation of the auditor and will take appropriate action to
record and adjust payables and receivables at year end. Also year end property tax information will be
obtained from the County Treasurer and entries will be proposed to the audit firm.

2008-5 County Weed and Pest Control District-Separation of Duties:

The small size of the District's office staff limits the possibility of adequate separation of duties in the
accounting area. The basic premise of separation of duties is that no one employee should have access
to both the physical assets and the related accounting records or to all phases of a transaction. The District
has implemented compensating controls to the extent possible by use of the governing board. While we
recognize that it may be impractical for the District to achieve adequate separation of duties within the
accounting department, it is important that the Board be aware of this condition.

Client Response: The Board is aware of this condition. The District feels that it would be impractical to
implement an accounting system with adequate separation of duties as the cost of such a system would
greatly exceed the benefit that would be derived. The District has, however, implemented separation of
duties to the extent practical. (This is an ongoing condition.)
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Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

2008-6 Converse County Hospital-Joint Venture Investment Recording

Condition: The Hospital has not established an effective system of internal control fo ensure investments
are accurately presented in the financial statements.

Criteria: GAAP recording requires that investments be recorded at fair value.

Cause: As the joint ventures were starting, they were not material in amounts. Now that they have been
operating for a few years, they have hecome material to the Hospital's financial statements.

Effect: The effect of improper investment recording is that assets are understated in the financial
statements.

Recommendation: The Board should develop a policy with regard to recerding joint venture investments
which allows management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
initiate, authorize, record, process, and report the financial position and changes in financial position of the

joint ventures.

Response: The two joint ventures that Memorial Hospital of Converse County is involved in have become
material in relation to the financial statements. Management will work with Big Country Rehabilitation's staff
in refining the accounting system and monitor it as well. Big Country Rehabilitation is currently on a cash
basis for financial reporting and IRS filing. Worksheets have been developed to convert those statements
fo an accrual basis for determining the value of the investment and presentation in MHCC's financial
statements. This will be implemented with the October financial statements with updates occurring quarterly
from that point. Powder River Imaging, LLC' accounting records are maintained on a cash basis as well for
the same reasons. Powder River Imaging, LLC’s records are the responsibility of MHCC and will be
converted to an accrual basis for presentation in MHCC's financia} statements in October and adjusted

quarterly.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.
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Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2008

2007-1 Converse County-Preparation of Financial Statements

Criteria: An integral part of the internal control system is the ability to prepare financial statements
including the necessary footnote disclosures.

Condition: The County does not have an individual with the expertise fo prepare the financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Effect: Potential misstatements could exist within the County’s financial statements without being detected.

Recommendation: The County should evaluate the cost/benefit of having an employee with the expertise
to prepare financial statements.

Management response: Historically, the County has relied on the auditor to assist in preparing the
financial statements.

Status: Condition still exists. See 2008-1.

2007-2 County Airport Board Segregation of Duties

Criteria: No one employee .should have access to both the physical assets and the related accounting
recerds or {o all phases of a transaction.

Condition: Cne person has the primary responsibility for performing most of the accounting and financial
duties.

Effect: All of the aspects of internal accounting control which rely upon an adequate segregation of duties
are missing.

Cause: Only a single staff person is available to perform the accounting and financial duties.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Board review accounting and financial records on a regular
basis.

Management Response: While it is impractical for the association to achieve segregation of duties, the
Board is aware of this condition.

Status: Condition still exists. See 2008-2.

2007-3 County Airport Board-Auditor Generates the Annual Financial Statements Including Footnotes

Criteria: The Auditing Standards Board (ASB) recently issued guidance to auditors related to an entity's
internal controls over financial reporting. Many small organizations rely on their auditor to generate the
annual financial statements including footnotes. SAS No. 112 emphasizes that the auditor can not be part
of your system of internal control over financial reporting.

Condition: Inour judgement, the Board's accounting personnel and those charged with governance, in the
course of their assigned duties, lack the capable skills to prepare the financial statements and related
__.._ footnotes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and to detect and correct

a material misstatement, if present.
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Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS-CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

Recommendation: 1n our judgement, management and those charged with governance need to
understand the importance of this communication. However, due to the lack of resources available to
management to correct this significant deficience in financial reporting, we recommend management
mitigate this weakness by having a heightened awareness of all transactions being reported.

Auditee’s Response: We believe Board members and management have the appropriate skilis and
knowledge to understand the financial statements. The Board and management review and approve the
financial statements. The Board and management review and approve the financial statements along with
the journal entries proposed by the auditor as well as questicn various journat entries and financial
information, including the notes to the financial statements..

Status: Condition still exists. See 2008-3.

2007-4 County Airport Board-Payable and Receivable Are Not Adjusted at Year End

Criteria: The Auditing Standard Board (ASB) recently issued guidance to auditors related to and entity’s
internal controls over financial reporting. SAS No. 112 states that material adjustments performed by the

auditor can not be part of your system of internal control.

Condition: The Board’s accounting personnel, in the course of their assigned duties, are not recording,
and adjusting payables and receivables at year end. This does not allow management to detect and correct
a material misstatement if present.

Recommendation: Itshould be noted that accounting personnel are capable and knowledgeable to record
and adjust payable and receivables. Also property taxes receivable at year end is obtained from information
provided by the County Treasurer, which is available well after the year end closing of the books is done.
We recommend that the Board capture all the information at a certain period in time so accurate cash basis
information is available to properly file reports. After data is captured we recommend that prior year
payables be reversed and current year payables be recorded,. Also, due to the fact that property tax
information is not available until after the year end closing is performed, we recommend that information be
obtained from the Treasurer and journal entries proposed to the audit firm.

Auditee’s Response: We concur with recommendation of the auditor and will take appropriate action to
record and adjust payable and receivables at year end. Also year end property tax information will be
obtained from the county Treasurer and entries will be proposed to the audit firm.

Status: Condition stiill exists. See 2008-4.

2007-5 County Weed and Pest Control District Segregation of Duties

Criteria: No one employee should have access to both the physical assets and the related accounting
records or to all phases of a transaction.

Condition: One person has the primary responsibility for performing most of the accounting and financial
duties.

Effect: All of the aspects of internal accounting control which rely upon an adequate segregation of duties
are missing.

Cause: Only a single staff person is available to perform the accounting and financial duties.
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Converse County, Wyoming
SCHEDULE OF PRICR AUDIT FINDINGS-CONTINUED
June 30, 2008

Recommendation: We recommend that the Board review accounting and financial records on a regular
basis.

Management Response: While it is impractical for the association to achieve segregation of duties, the
Board is aware of this condition.

Status: Condition still exists. See 2008-5.
2007-6 County Weed and Pest Control District-System of Internal Control

Last year the Auditing Standards Board (ASB) issued guidance to auditors related to an entity’s internal
control over financial reporting. The ASB guidance stated that auditors who prepare financial statements
and footnotes, on behalf of their clients become part of an entity's internal control system. The ASB
pronouncement stated that this involvement was a significant deficiency and possible a material weakness
which needed tc communicated as a finding.

Subsequent to the issuance of the financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2007, the ASB issued
clarification on their guidance to auditors and set criteria which clients must meet in order for this
involvement not to be reported a s a finding. Converse County Weed & Pest Control District meets these
criteria and consequently our involvement in the preparation of the financial statements is no longer
considered a finding.
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